
 
CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA                           CITY COUNCIL MEETING & 
 CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS                            PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA 

 

  

May 5th, 2015 9:00 am 
 

1. Call to Order by Mayor Jan J. Moore 
 

2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance by Councilman Travis Chance 
 

3. Recognitions/Public Presentations: 
A) Announcement of Frontier Communication’s, “America’s Best Communities Grant 

Award” by Allen Muldrew 
 

B) Presentation of Proclamation for “S.H.I.N.E. Clubhouse with Pineland BHDD 
recognizing May 7, 2015 as Children’s Mental Health Awareness Day in Statesboro 
and recognition of participation in the “Adopt a Spot Program”. 

 
C) Recognition of the City of Statesboro “Slim by ’16” 1st Quarter Winner 

 
D) Presentation by GSU students Katie Reams and Abbie Pelech for their winning 

Living Wall / Vertical Garden design to be constructed and planted in the Smith 
Alley/ creative corridor connector between the Fab Lab buildings. Construction and 
planting of the design to be funded by the Fab Lab's $20,000 grant award from the 
GSU Sustainability Grant Funds. 
 

4. Public Comments (Agenda Item): 
 

5. Consideration of a Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 
A) Approval of Minutes 

a) 04-21-2015 Council Minutes 
b) 04-21-2015 Executive Session Minutes 

 
6. Administrative Hearing  for alleged alcohol violation  as pursuant to Chapter 6 of the 

City of Statesboro Alcohol Ordinance: 
 
A) Enforcement from the Statesboro Police Department: 

                                                     Offense in 12 month period               Citation Date 
a) Jason Franklin                               1st offense                                February 5, 2015  

Shenanigans 1 University Plaza 
 

7. Consideration of a Motion to approve the design plans for the City of Statesboro / 
Georgia Southern University Fab Lab and Business Innovation Center to allow for the 
final design and permitting of construction drawings. Presentation by GSU Project 
Architect Carrie Thorne. 
 



 
 

8. First Reading and Consideration of a Motion to approve Ordinance 2015-04: An 
Ordinance approving water and sewer billing, termination of service for non-payment, 
and billing adjustments. 

 
9. Consideration of a Motion to Approve Award of Contract to Sikes Brothers Inc. for the 

City Street Resurfacing FY 2015 Project.  Sikes Brothers' bid was in the amount of 
$708,455.65, based on unit price extensions, however, the Engineering Department 
requests approval to spend up to the budgeted amount of $763,230.11 in order to 
resurface additional street mileage.  Costs for additional work to be based on contractor’s 
unit bid prices.  Construction to be paid for through a combination of Georgia 
Department of Transportation LMIG funds ($208,230.11) and 2013 SPLOST funds 
($555,000).   
  

10. Consideration of a Motion to declare certain listed items as surplus and disposed of as 
recommended by Darren Prather, Purchasing Director and Jason Boyles, Senior Assistant 
Engineer. 
 

11. Consideration of a Motion to award the sale of surplus property (0.310 of an acre located 
adjacent to Crescent Avenue) to the Statesboro Primitive Baptist Church in the amount of 
$600.00. If sale is approved, the purchaser will be required to fund the construction of 
a cul-de-sac, per the City of Statesboro's specifications, at this location.  

 
12. Consideration of a Motion to set the Public Hearing for the FY2016 Budget for Thursday 

June 4, 2015 at 4:00 pm in the Council Chambers at City Hall. 
 

13. Consideration of a Motion to appoint a voting delegate and Flag Bearer for the 2015 
GMA Annual Convention in Savannah.    
 

14. Other Business from City Council 
 

15. City Managers Comments 
 

16. Public Comments (General) 
 

17. Consideration of a Motion to enter into Executive Session to discuss “Personnel Matters”   
in accordance with O.C.G.A.§50-14-3 (2012) 

 
18. Consideration of a Motion to Adjourn 



 

 
 
 

National Children’s Mental Health Awareness Day 
Proclamation 

 
 
 
 

WHEREAS,  addressing the complex mental health needs of children, youth, and 
families today is fundamental to the future of Statesboro and Bulloch 
County; and, 

 
WHEREAS,  the need for comprehensive, coordinated mental health services for 

children, youth, and families places upon our community a critical 
responsibility; and, 

 
WHEREAS,  it is appropriate that a day should be set apart each year for the direction of 

our thoughts toward our children’s mental health and well-being; and, 
 
WHEREAS,  S.H.I.N.E. Clubhouse with Pineland BHDD, through its unique approach 

to serving children and adolescents, is effectively caring for the mental 
health needs of children, youth, and families in our community; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Jan J. Moore, Mayor of Statesboro, Georgia, do hereby proclaim 
May 7, 2015 “Children’s Mental Health Awareness Day” in the City of Statesboro and urge 
our citizens and all agencies and organizations interested in meeting every child’s mental health 
needs to unite on that day in the observance of such exercises as will acquaint the people of 
Statesboro with the fundamental necessity of a year-round program for children and youth with 
mental health needs and their families. 
 
 

      Passed and adopted this 5th day of May, 2015. 
 
 
 
 

 CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA 
 
 

     
 Jan J. Moore, Mayor 



The Living Wall 
Downtown 

Georgia Southern University Business Innovation Group 
and the Center for Sustainability 

Presented By: 
Katie Reams and Abbie Pelech 



 An interactive project that will bring green 
space to downtown and enhance the Creative 
Corridor that will connect the FabLab, 
Innovation Incubator, and Arts Incubator 

 Student Involvement from start to finish, 
including design submissions, construction, 
and ongoing maintenance 

 Potential plant selection, adaptability of the 
proposed garden 

 Data collection to verify the sustainability of 
the wall 
 

Living Wall Downtown 
Project funded by the Georgia Southern University Center for 

Sustainability  
Abbie Pelech and Katie Reams, Project Leaders 



{ 

Final Design Image 1 



 

Final Design Image 2 



 
 

CITY OF STATESBORO 
Council Minutes 

April 21, 2015 

 
A regular meeting of the Statesboro City Council was held on April 21, 2015 at 5:30 p.m. in the 
Council Chambers at City Hall. Present were Mayor Jan J. Moore, Council Members: Will Britt, 
Phil Boyum, John Riggs, and Gary Lewis.  Also present were Interim City Manager Robert 
Cheshire, City Clerk Sue Starling, City Attorney Alvin Leaphart, Assistant City Engineer Jason 
Boyles and Director of Planning and Development Mandi Cody. Absent was Councilman Travis 
Chance.    
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Jan Moore 
 
The Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance was led by Councilman Gary Lewis. 
 
Recognitions/Public Presentations: 
 
Presentation of plaque to Mr. Henry Clay for his years of service as Tree Board Chairman 
 
Current Tree Board Chairman, Wesley Parker thanked former Tree Board Chairman Mr. Henry 
Clay for his service and spoke of projects Mr. Clay has accomplished throughout his years of 
service.  Mayor Moore presented Mr. Henry Clay with a plaque for his 10 years of service with 
the Tree Board. 
 
Public Comments (Agenda Item): None 
 
Consideration of a Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 

A)   Approval of Minutes 
a) 04-02-2015 Budget Retreat Minutes 
b) 04-07-2015 Council Minutes 
c) 04-07-2015 Executive Session Minutes 

B)    Consideration of a Motion to approve Special Event Permit 
a) Springhill Suites Conference Center – Charity Fundraiser for Statesboro     
Regional Sexual Assault Center on May 15, 2015 

 C)  Consideration of a Motion to approve Resolution 2015-09: A Resolution                     
          reappointing J. Alvin Leaphart, IV as the Prosecuting Attorney of the   
          Municipal Court for the City of Statesboro  

  
Councilman Britt made a motion, seconded by Councilman Lewis to approve the consent agenda 
in its entirety. Councilman Britt, Riggs, and Lewis voted in favor of the motion. The motion 
carried by a 3-0 vote. 
 
 
 



 
 

Consideration of a Motion to approve Resolution 2015-10: A Resolution to approve 
adjustments to the pay and compensation plan to reclassify a Receptionist position, create a 
Storm Water Technician position, reclassify an HR Coordinator position and create an HR 
coordinator position.  
 
Councilman Britt made a motion, seconded by Councilman Riggs to approve Resolution 2015-
10: A Resolution to approve adjustments to the pay and compensation plan to reclassify a 
Receptionist position, create a Storm Water Technician position, reclassify an HR Coordinator 
position and create an HR coordinator position. Councilman Britt, Riggs and Lewis voted in 
favor of the motion.  The Motion carried by a 3-0 vote.  
 
Consideration of a Motion to award the contract for an integrated public sector financial 
management software solution to Tyler Technologies as they were selected through an 
extensive RFP process in the amount of $295,966.00 (includes: software/implementation, 
yearly maintenance / support fees and training travel expenses incurred by vendor).  If 
approved, this will be funded by the GMA Lease Pool.  This software will be utilized by all 
City of Statesboro departments.  
 
Councilman Riggs made a motion, seconded by Councilman Britt to award the contract for an 
integrated public sector financial management software solution to Tyler Technologies as they 
were selected through an extensive RFP process in the amount of $295,966.00 (includes: 
software/implementation, yearly maintenance / support fees and training travel expenses incurred 
by vendor).  Councilman Britt, Riggs and Lewis voted in favor of the Motion.  The motion 
carried by a 3-0 vote. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to approve Summary Change Order No. 1 for Phase 1 – I-16/301 
Utility Infrastructure. The revised contract amount is $2,238,228.34, which is a decrease of 
$11,771.53. 
 
Councilman Lewis made a motion, seconded by Councilman Britt to approve Summary Change 
Order No. 1 for Phase 1 – I-16/301 Utility Infrastructure. The revised contract amount is 
$2,238,228.34.  Councilman Britt, Riggs and Lewis voted in favor of the motion. The motion 
carried by a 3-0 vote. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to approve Change Order No. 2 in the amount of $130,278.52 
for Cawana Road Sewer and Water project. 
 
Councilman Britt made a motion, seconded by Councilman Riggs to approve Change Order No. 
2 in the amount of $130,278.52 for Cawana Road Sewer and Water project. Councilman Britt, 
Boyum, Riggs and Lewis voted in favor of the Motion.  The motion carried with a 4-0 vote. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Consideration of a Motion to award general liability and workers compensation insurance 
renewal to Travelers Insurance in the amount of $1,039,302.  This amount may vary 
throughout the year based on additions and deletions.  This includes all areas of insurance 
except for equipment and vehicles in the Fire Department which is covered by the carrier 
VFIS.  This will be funded by each department based on a percentage of usage formula 
 
Councilman Britt made a motion, seconded by Councilman Boyum to award general liability and 
workers compensation insurance renewal to Travelers Insurance in the amount of $1,039,302.  
This amount may vary throughout the year based on additions and deletions.  This includes all 
areas of insurance except for equipment and vehicles in the Fire Department which is covered by 
the carrier VFIS.  This will be funded by each department based on a percentage of usage 
formula. Councilman Britt, Boyum, Riggs and Lewis voted in favor of the Motion. The motion 
carried with a 4-0 vote. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to award a renewal of property, equipment and vehicle 
insurance coverage (Fire Dept.) to VFIS in the amount of $36,949.  This amount covers 
only property as the personnel liability of the Fire Department falls under the Travelers 
policy with other City personnel.  VFIS offers current new replacement values for 
equipment as well as free needed training programs for fire departments. 
 
Councilman Boyum made a motion seconded by Councilman Riggs to award a renewal of 
property, equipment and vehicle insurance coverage (Fire Dept) to VFIS in the amount of 
$36,949.  Councilman Britt, Boyum Riggs and Lewis voted in favor of the Motion.  The motion 
carried with a 4-0 vote. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to award the purchase of a service truck for the Fleet 
Maintenance Division to Summit Truck Equipment in the amount of $119,060.00.  This will 
replace an existing 2002 model service truck. If approved the current truck will be brought 
to Council to be declared as surplus once the new truck in received and put into use. This 
purchase is listed as CIP # FMD – 6 in the amount of $130,000. 
 
Councilman Britt made a motion, seconded by Councilman Lewis to award the purchase of a 
service truck for the Fleet Maintenance Division to Summit Truck Equipment in the amount of 
$119,060.00.  This will replace an existing 2002 model service truck. If approved the current 
truck will be brought to Council to be declared as surplus once the new truck in received and put 
into use. This purchase is listed as CIP # FMD – 6 in the amount of $130,000. Councilman Britt, 
Boyum, Riggs and Lewis voted in favor of the Motion. The Motion carried with a 4-0 vote. 
 
Introduction to the draft of a proposed Alcohol Ordinance 
 
City Attorney, Alvin Leaphart stated that two different revised editions of the Alcohol Ordinance 
were placed in each of Council’s packet.  He asked that Council review and give direction as to 
how they would like to proceed with adopting a new Alcohol Ordinance.   The question was 
asked if these documents would be released to the public.  There was a motion by Councilman 
Boyum, seconded by Councilman Riggs to release the two different revised editions of the 
Alcohol Ordinance. Councilman Britt, Boyum, Riggs and Lewis voted in favor of the motion.  
The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 



 
 

 
A City Council Work Session was set for May 13th 2015 at 5:00pm  
 
Other Business from City Council: None 
 
City Managers Comments 
Interim City Manager, Robert Cheshire stated that Planning Director Mandi Cody has been 
working on the design standards for South Main Street.  The draft will be presented to the South 
Main Committee, and then a final draft will be brought before Council for a vote. 
Mr. Cheshire asked for Council’s approval to apply for the Tiger Grant.  This is a Federal Grant 
that would be used for the South Main Street Project. There was a motion by Councilman Riggs, 
seconded by Councilman Boyum to allow staff to submit phase one of the Tiger Grant as 
stipulated by Interim City Manager Robert Cheshire. Councilman Britt, Boyum, Riggs and 
Lewis voted in favor of the motion.  The motion carried by a 4-0 vote.   
 
Public Comments (General):  
Director of Water/Wastewater Wayne Johnson updated Council regarding the 301 I-16 elevated 
storage tank, the water main and all hydrants. He stated at this point, they were active and on 
line.  He also stated they were preparing to bid out Phase III and hopefully will have that project 
completed by January 2016. 
Alan Muldrew, Director of the Downtown Statesboro Development Authority thanked the City 
for their support of “Spring in Statesboro” and especially Public Works Director Robert Seamans 
for all of the work that was done to make this event a success.   
 
Consideration of a Motion to enter into Executive Session to discuss “Personnel  
Matters” in accordance with O.C.G.A.§50-14-3 (2012) 
 
At 7:10 pm, Councilman Riggs made a motion, seconded by Councilman Britt to enter into 
Executive Session to discuss “Personnel Matters”  in accordance with O.C.G.A.§50-14-3 (2012). 
Councilman Britt, Boyum, Riggs and Lewis voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by 
a 4-0 vote. 
 
At 7:40 pm, Councilman Lewis made a motion, seconded by Councilman Riggs to come out of 
Executive Session. Councilman Britt, Boyum, Riggs and Lewis voted in favor of the motion. The 
motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Mayor Moore called the regular meeting back to order with no action being taken. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to Adjourn 
 
Councilman Lewis made a motion, seconded by Councilman Riggs to adjourn the meeting. 
Councilman Britt, Boyum, Riggs and Lewis voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by 
a 4-0 vote. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:41 pm. 
 
 









Fab Lab 
 

A Joint Venture: 
United States Economic Development Administration,  
Georgia Southern University Research and Service 

Foundation, City of Statesboro and Averitt Center for the 
Arts 

 
Presented By: 
Carrie Thorne 



{ 
Business Incubator & 

Fabrication 
Laboratory Plan 

62 East Main Street 



Arts Incubator Plan 
58 East Main Street 



East Main Street 

62 East Main 

58 East Main 

Smith Street Canopy  
Plan and Elevation 





ORDINANCE 2015-04 
REGARDING 

WATER AND SEWER BILLING, TERMINATION OF SERVICE FOR NONPAYMENT, 
AND BILLING ADJUSTMENTS 

 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council have previously adopted an ordinance governing water 
and sewer billing and termination of service for nonpayment;  
 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council has determined there is sufficient reason and need to 
amend section 82-70 of the Code of Ordinances, City of Statesboro, Georgia; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Statesboro, Georgia, in regular session assembled as follows: 
 
Section 1.   Section  82-70 (Billing; termination of water service for nonpayment of charges) of 
the Code of Ordinances, City of Statesboro, Georgia is hereby amended by replacing it in full, 
and shall read as follows: 
 
Sec. 82-70. Billing; termination of water service for nonpayment of charges, and billing 
adjustments 
  
(a)  Billing. All fees shall be billed monthly as part of a combined utility bill, unless the user does 
not have another utility service. In that case, single bills shall be sent. All bills shall be sent out 
using the billing cycle and schedule for payment as determined by the mayor and city council. 
 
(b)  Non-payment and termination of service. All bills not paid by the due date are subject to the 
late payment charge, and then immediate cut-off on the date printed on the bill, unless other 
arrangements are made pursuant to Water and Sewer Billing Procedures referenced below in 
Paragraph (d). 
 
(c)  New deposit required. In the event of non-payment and service cut-off, the customer must 
pay the bill in full, the late payment charge, a cut-off charge if applicable, and pay a deposit if it 
was either waived, previously refunded, or was used to make the payment, late payment charge, 
and/or the cut-off charge.  
 
(d)  Adjustments.  Adjustments to water and sewer bills shall be governed by the Water and 
Sewer Billing Procedures attached to this Ordinance as Attachment A which may be amended 
from time to time by Resolution of the Mayor and City Council.  A copy of these Water and 
Sewer Billing Procedures contained in Attachment A and any subsequent Resolutions amending 
these procedures shall be kept on file with the City Clerk for review by the public during the 
regular business hours of City Hall.  A copy of these Water and Sewer Billing Procedures 
contained in Attachment A and any amendments can be obtained through an Open Records 
Request.  The Water and Sewer Billing Procedures shall be administrated by the City Clerk or 
her designee.  
 



Section 2:  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby 
repealed. 
 
Section 3:  This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its adoption by the City 
Council. 
 
First Reading         May 5th, 2015 
Second Reading     May 19th, 2015 
  
SO ORDAINED, this ___day of ____________ 2015 in Statesboro, Georgia.   
 
 
             
      __________________________________ 
      Jan J. Moore, in her capacity as Mayor of 
      Statesboro, Georgia. 
 
      ATTEST: 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Sue Starling, in her capacity as City Clerk of 
      Statesboro, Georgia. 
 



 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
ATTACHMENT "A" 

OF ORDINANCE NO.: __2015-04_____________________  
ADMINISTRATION OF WATER AND SEWER BILLING PROCEDURES- 

 
1 PURPOSE AND SCOPE 

 
 
1.1 PURPOSE 
 
The purpose of this Section is to provide for the procedures for the adjustment of water and 
sewer bills.  All exemptions or adjustments to water and sewer bills shall be made pursuant to 
these administrative procedures. 
 
1.2 EXEMPTIONS FROM TERMINATION OF SERVICE DUE TO HARDSHIP; 
WAIVER OF LATE FEES, COLLECTION FEES AND DEPOSITS  
 
1.2.1: In cases of hardship the City Clerk is authorized to grant an exception from termination of 
service provided for in Section 82-70(b) of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Statesboro, and 
set up a payment plan whereby the account shall be brought current within three (3) consecutive 
billing cycles.  Such a payment plan can only be entered into once in a 24-month period. Failure 
to meet any term of the payment plan shall terminate the payment plan, and the services shall be 
terminated. 
 
1.2.2:   In cases of hardship the City Clerk is not authorized to waive the assessment of late 
payment charges and/or collection fees provided for in Section 82-70(b) of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Statesboro. 
 
1.2.3:  The City Clerk shall not have authority to grant a hardship exemption from the 
termination of service for longer than three (3) consecutive billing cycles. 
 
1.2.4:  In cases of hardship where the customer cannot bring the bill current within three (3) 
consecutive billing cycles, upon recommendation by the City Clerk, the City Manager is 
authorized to set up a payment plan whereby the account shall be brought current within six (6) 
consecutive billing cycles.  Such a payment plan can only be entered into once in a 24-month 
period. Failure to meet any term of the payment plan shall terminate the payment plan, and the 
services shall be terminated. 
 
1.2.5:  In cases of hardship the City Manager is not authorized to waive the assessment of late 
payment charges and/or collection fees provided for in Section 82-70(b) of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Statesboro. 
 
   



 
 

2 
 

1.3 BILLING ADJUSTMENTS DUE TO WATER LEAKS 
 
1.3.1:  The customer is responsible for promptly discovering and making any necessary repairs to 
stop the loss of water. The City has no obligation to adjust accounts when the water has been 
metered properly.  However, the City wants to encourage customers to make prompt and 
permanent repairs. 
  
1.3.2:  The City Clerk shall have the authority to issue a credit adjustment to the water and/or 
sewer account of a residential customer who has experienced the loss of metered water beyond 
the customer's normal and reasonable control as below provided. 
 
1.3.3:  For leaks where the lost water did not return to the sewer system, credit adjustments by 
City Clerk shall be made in the following manner:  the sewer charge shall be reduced to the 
average of the three (3) previous month’s sewer charge excluding the month(s) of excessive 
water consumption. 
   
1.3.4:  For leaks where the lost water did enter the sewer system, only one credit adjustment can 
be made in any 24 month period.  Credit adjustments by the City Clerk shall be made as follows:  
to reduce the water charge the City Clerk shall use the average of the three (3) previous month’s 
water consumption excluding the month(s) of excessive water consumption.  The customer shall 
pay the base rate, the three month average, plus one-half of the water loss.  The sewer charge 
shall not be reduced.   
 
1.3.5:  For leaks on water only accounts, only one credit adjustment can be made in any 24 month 
period.  Credit Adjustments by the City Clerk shall be made as follows:  the City Clerk shall use 
the average of the three (3) previous month’s water consumption excluding the month(s) of 
excessive water consumption.  The customer shall pay the base rate, the three month average plus 
one-half of the water loss. 
 
1.3.6:  There shall be no billing adjustments for water loss given to any residential account that 
has one meter serving more than one residence.  However, upon verification by Department of 
Water and Wastewater that the lost water did not enter the sewer system an adjustment may be 
made pursuant to Section 1.3.3 above. 
 
1.3.7:  There shall be no billing adjustments for leaks given for water billed through an irrigation 
meter. 
 
1.3.8:   There shall be no billing adjustments for water loss given to any commercial, industrial, 
or governmental account.  However, upon verification by Department of Water and Wastewater 
that the lost water did not enter the sewer system an adjustment may be made pursuant to Section 
1.3.3 above. 
 
1.4.   SWIMMING POOLS 
 
1.4.1      No adjustments shall be made for water used in a swimming pool. 



 
 

3 
 

 
 
1.5   BILLING ADJUSTMENTS NECESSARY TO AVOID A MANIFEST INJUSTICE 
TO THE CUSTOMER OR UNJUST ENRICHMENT TO THE CITY 
 
1.5.1:  The City recognizes that these administrative procedures cannot provide for every 
possible circumstance for which a billing adjustment would be necessary to avoid manifest 
injustice to the customer or unjust enrichment to the City.  As such appropriate discretion to 
make billing adjustments must vest in City staff, subject to review and approval by the City 
Manager.  
 
1.5.2:  If in the opinion of the City Clerk a billing adjustment is necessary to avoid manifest 
injustice to the customer or unjust enrichment to the City, the City Clerk shall recommend an 
appropriate billing adjustment to the City Manager.   
 
1.5.3:  The City Manager, upon review and investigation of the City Clerk’s recommendation 
shall have authority to accept, reject or modify the terms of the billing adjustment recommended 
by the City Clerk. 
 
1.6  EXEMPTIONS FROM TERMINATION OF SERVICE, WAIVER OF LATE FEES, 
COLLECTION FEES FOR AN EXEMPLARY PAYMENT HISTORY 
 
1.6.1:   If a residential account holder has never been late on payment of their water and sewer 
bill, never had a check returned and otherwise had an exemplary payment history for SIXTY (60) 
consecutive billing cycles, the City Clerk may exempt the account from termination of services, 
and waive all late fees and collection fees. 
 
1.6.2:  Upon the grant of the above exemption, the City Clerk may not grant another exemption 
pursuant to Section 1.6.1 to that residential account holder unless that residential account holder 
is not late on payment of their water and sewer bill, never has a check returned and otherwise has 
an exemplary payment history for SIXTY (60) consecutive billing cycles subsequent to the date 
of the last exemption granted pursuant to Section 1.6.1.   
 
1.6.3:  No exemption under Section 1.6 shall be granted to a commercial, industrial, or 
governmental account. 
   
1.7 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 
1.7.1:  No employee of the City of Statesboro or a member of the employee’s household or 
immediate family shall be granted an exemption or adjustment, as provided above, to their water 
or sewer bill without the written consent of the City Manager. 
 
1.7.2:  No appointed official of the City of Statesboro, e.g. the City Manager, the City Clerk, the 
City Attorney, and the Municipal Court Judge, or a member of the appointed official’s household 



 
 

4 
 

or immediate family shall be granted an exemption or adjustment, as provided above, to their 
water or sewer bill without the written consent of the Mayor.    
 
1.7.3: No elected official of the City of Statesboro or a member of the elected official’s 
household or immediate family shall be granted an exemption or adjustment, as provided above, 
to their water or sewer bill without the written consent of two (2) other elected officials. 
 
  
1.8: SEVERABILITY 
 
If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of these administrative procedures are for 
any reason held to be unlawful or unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of 
the remaining portions of these administrative procedures. 
 
 
 





City of Statesboro FY2015 Street Resurfacing List

STREET BEGINNING POINT ENDING POINT LENGTH (MILES)
Gentilly Road 

(northbound lane)
South Edgewood Gentilly Drive 0.65

Stockyard Northside Dr West Main 1.13

Woodrow Ave Northside Drive Zetterower Ave 0.18

Foxlake Rd Northside Dr Terminus 0.25

Zetterower Road Northside Dr Aldred Ave 0.28

Pinewood Dr North Main St Debbie Dr 0.40

West Main City Limits Joint 200 feet west of Foss St 0.22

Davis Street Northside Drive East Parrish 0.21

East Main Zetterower Ave Northside Dr 0.29

Chandler Road Fair Rd Georgia Ave 0.24

Chandler Road Malecki Dr Spot Repair

MLK Dr. Northside Drive West Spot Repair

Braswell St North Zetterower Ave Spot Repair

TOTAL MILEAGE 3.86

S



















 

Purchasing 

 

Memo 
 
 
TO:  Robert Cheshire, City Manager 
  
FROM: Darren Prather, Purchasing Director 
 
DATE: 4-30-2015 
 
Re:  Recommendation—Sale of  Surplus Property Adjacent to Crescent Avenue 
 
The City of Statesboro advertised, per ordinance requirements, for the sale of surplus 
property located adjacent to Crescent Avenue. The minimum amount was set at $500 and 
the successful bidder will be required to construct a cul-de-sac at this location as a part of 
the agreement. This property is located next to the Statesboro Primitive Baptist Church 
location and is approximately 0.310 of an acre in size. We received one bid as follows: 
 

1. Statesboro Primitive Baptist Church  $600.00 
 
Note: In addition to the bid amount, the purchaser is required to construct a cul-de-sac per 
the City of Statesboro’s specifications. This will be done at the purchaser’s expense. 
 
We recommend that the purchase be awarded to the Statesboro Primitive Baptist Church 
in the amount of $600.00 per all conditions listed in terms of sale. 


	05-05-2015 Council Agenda
	05-2015 Proclamation for National Children Mental Health
	05-2015 City Council Slides 4.27.15 Living Wall
	The Living Wall Downtown�Georgia Southern University Business Innovation Group and the Center for Sustainability�Presented By:�Katie Reams and Abbie Pelech
	Living Wall Downtown�Project funded by the Georgia Southern University Center for Sustainability �Abbie Pelech and Katie Reams, Project Leaders
	Slide Number 3
	Final Design Image 2

	04-21-2015 Council minutes
	05-2015 SHENANIGANS Citation
	05-2015 Fab Lab Construction Design presentation
	Fab Lab��A Joint Venture:�United States Economic Development Administration, �Georgia Southern University Research and Service Foundation, City of Statesboro and Averitt Center for the Arts��Presented By:�Carrie Thorne
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5

	05-2015-04 ORDINANCE   Water Billing
	05-2015-04 Attachement A Adm Procedures Water and Sewer Billing  Final
	ATTACHMENT "A"
	OF ORDINANCE NO.: __2015-04_____________________
	U1 PURPOSE AND SCOPE
	1.1 PURPOSE
	1.2 EXEMPTIONS FROM TERMINATION OF SERVICE DUE TO HARDSHIP; WAIVER OF LATE FEES, COLLECTION FEES AND DEPOSITS
	1.3 BILLING ADJUSTMENTS DUE TO WATER LEAKS
	1.7 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
	1.7.1:  No employee of the City of Statesboro or a member of the employee’s household or immediate family shall be granted an exemption or adjustment, as provided above, to their water or sewer bill without the written consent of the City Manager.
	1.7.2:  No appointed official of the City of Statesboro, e.g. the City Manager, the City Clerk, the City Attorney, and the Municipal Court Judge, or a member of the appointed official’s household or immediate family shall be granted an exemption or ad...
	1.7.3: No elected official of the City of Statesboro or a member of the elected official’s household or immediate family shall be granted an exemption or adjustment, as provided above, to their water or sewer bill without the written consent of two (2...
	1.8: SEVERABILITY

	05-2015-1 Resurfacing Low Bidder Memo
	05-2015-2 City Street Resurfacing List FY 2015 (2)
	05-2015-3 City Street Resurfacing Map FY 2015 (2)
	05-2015 Wastewater Surplus Items
	05-2015-26 Crescent Prop Sale

